
   
   

FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF LAW ENFORCEMENT 

WRITTEN ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS 
 

ITB/RFP/ITNRFI #1523 For Statewide Law Enforcement Data Sharing Systems 
 

All written questions are reproduced in the same format as submitted by the Respondent. 
 

Question #1 

In reviewing the RFI-1523 document. I want to state that this is a major project, more than our 
company can handle. BUT if you have been approached by other companies that we could partner 
with we have some level of experience with LE systems that could be of use and service. Is it 
possible that you could pass my name on to other companies that have contacted you? Perhaps 
put me in contact with other vendors where we could act as a sub? 

Answer #1 

As RFI 1523 is just a request for information, there will be no sub-contractors or 
partners.  If and when this project becomes a procurement, companies could partner 
or sub-contract with other vendors.  Once the procurement has been requested, it 
will be posted out on the Vendor Bid System (VBS). 

Question #2 Is the intent of the new statewide system to replace the regional systems, or leverage them for 
connectivity within the respective regions? 

Answer #2 

The intent of the new statewide system is to replace the regional systems that are 
currently funded through DHS grants allocated for data sharing within Florida.  
Distributed query connectivity to those regional systems, should they remain in 
existence, will be determined based on the requirements of the new system, which 
have not been defined. 

Question #3 

On page 10, the request indicates, “Describe how the system could connect to other data sharing 
systems such as N-DEx. How could data be exported for upload and what interface would be 
used to query other systems? How could other systems be able to query the data of the system?”  
Is it your intent that the new solution will pull data from the local RMS systems and move that data 
to populate N-DEx? 

Answer #3 

At this time all that is known is that the data for this system will be sourced from 
RMS, JMS, and other systems contained within local agencies.  Florida intends to 
participate in the FBI’s National Data Exchange (N-DEx), so the statewide system 
would need to be capable of sending Florida’s investigative data to N-DEx in the 
required format, LEXS-PD (XML) in the N-DEx IEPD, and the system would also need 
to have a LEXS-SR interface that would allow queries of the N-DEx data. 

Question #4 
Did not see any references to “governance” in the document, which seems to be important in this 
type of collaboration among agencies.    Can you comment on the extent to which all the 
participating entities have agreed to either warehouse or move forward with a federated approach, 
if proposed by vendor(s), as this would change the way these entities currently operate. 

Answer #4 

The Statewide Data Sharing Committee was formed by the Domestic Security 
Oversight Council (DSOC) to evaluate statewide data sharing.  The Committee will 
determine governance for the future project, should DSOC elect to move forward 
with one.  This Committee has not determined any specific approach, regarding data 
warehouse or federated query.  The intention of this RFI is to gather information on 
all possible approaches. 

Question #5 Has a bifurcated approach (i.e. both warehouse and federated) been rule out? 

Answer #5 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #6 
Is it your preference that the connectivity to the Regional System Records occurs via the regional 
systems (i.e. FINDER, SE LInX, etc.) or, is the desire to directly connect to each agency/entity 
system? 

Answer #6 
Existing regional systems should not be considered as sources of data.  FDLE is 
looking to vendors to provide information on what is available within the 
marketplace with the goal of capturing data from each agency/entity. 
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Question #7 
Will FDLE provide a two week extension of time so that the respondents have sufficient opportunity 
to prepare the most responsive information following the release of questions and answers to this 
RFI? 

Answer #7 No, but please respond, even if you aren’t able to include as much detail as planned. 
Question #8 To what extent does FDLE intend to “eliminate redundant capture of data” with the new solution? 

Also please provide any relevant use cases. 

Answer #8 
FDLE’s preferred approach is to receive data directly from the source system or 
consolidated systems from unique data sources.  Use cases have not been 
developed. 

Question #9 Has the State already had any demonstrations from available technology vendors prior to this RFI? 

Answer #9 No, the Statewide Data Sharing Committee has not had any demonstrations since its 
inception in 2014. 

Question #10 Can you please clarify the qualifications for data sharing reference accounts?  Would a vendor with 
statewide offender management system with multiple interfaces to disparate systems qualify? 

Answer #10 References are not required for response to the RFI, but FDLE is looking for 
vendors who meet the qualifications listed on page 9, Section V. of the RFI.   

Question #11 What are the CJIS certification requirements of the vendor? 

Answer #11 
Should a procurement move forward, those requirements will be refined, but in 
general, the vendor’s personnel will be required to conform to the FBI’s CJIS 
Security Policy (http://www.fbi.gov/about-us/cjis/cjis-security-policy-resource-center) 
and develop a system that complies with these CJIS Security Policies. 

Question #12 Does FDLE have any high level data requirements describing the type of data to be collected from 
each source system (i.e. JMS, RMS, CAD, Pawn, etc.)? 

Answer #12 
FDLE does not have any definite requirements at this time, but the data collected 
would likely be a subset of the data stored in each system that would be of use to 
investigators for lead generation.  Demographics of involved persons, reports, 
citations, and similar data would likely be part of the requirements. 

Question #13 Does FDLE wish to import mug shots or incident photographs from JMS/RMS systems? 

Answer #13 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #14 Does FDLE wish to import scanned documents (or similar) from source systems, such as RMS? 

Answer #14 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #15 Please describe the type of transactions, anticipated returns, and use cases for consumption of 
data returned from NDEX queries. 

Answer #15 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #16 
Is FDLE looking to keep the current sharing systems (FINDER, R-Lex, SmartShare, etc.) and have 
a new system connect to these and leverage their existing functionality? Or is FDLE looking to 
replace these with one new system? 

Answer #16 See Answers #2 and #6.   
Question #17 Is FLDE open to having an interface for data mining and a separate interface for operational field 

use? Or is FDLE looking to have one interface enable both? 

Answer #17 Detailed requirements have not been defined. If your system includes these features, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #18 What is the "Master Record" system?  Is that part of an MDM (Master Data Management) effort or 
simply the name of a repository? 

Answer #18 

A master record (as listed in the table on page 17 of the RFI) is one that is created by 
some data sharing systems (manually or automatically) to provide a consolidated 
view of a single person or other entity.  The vendors (CTS America and IBM) that 
have listed Master Records in their system use proprietary processes, so what if any 
level of Master Data Management they are using is not known to FDLE. 

Question #19 On a scale of 1 to 10, how would you rate the current state of duplication of information across 
sources? Is FDLE looking to implement an MDM strategy as part of the new unified system? 
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Answer #19 

A simple rating cannot be provided as this information was not part of the 
Assessment conducted by the Statewide Data Sharing Committee and is dependent 
on a large number of variables.  FDLE desires to have the highest quality of data 
available to users of the system, so information about Master Data Management and 
any other approaches to achieve this would be helpful. 

Question #20 Is there a specific requirement for the extent of historical data needed by source?  
Answer #20 Detailed requirements have not been defined. 
Question #21 For the performance of the proposed system related to name-based searches are we to use the 

assumption of 18MM rows of data (Master Record)? 

Answer #21 

The information in the tables on pages 16-20 of the RFI was provided by the regional 
systems and/or their vendors and is current as of August, 2014.  For the purposes of 
an RFI (please note that this is not a procurement), we have provided this data for 
informational purposes.  Vendors are free to use this information however they 
desire in their responses. 

Question #22 Are the performance response times for queries based on querying the warehouse or the 
distributed systems? 

Answer #22 
The information in the tables on pages 18 of the RFI is the response time for data 
warehouse (SE LInX, R-LEX, and TBSN) and distributed (FINDER & SmartShare) 
systems. 

Question #23 What are the expected response times for the consolidated sharing system? 

Answer #23 
Response times and other requirements have not been defined.  FDLE is looking for 
information (pages 9-10 of the RFI) on what types of response times vendors believe 
are possible based on similar systems they have implemented. 

Question #24 Is there an expectation for intelligence based responses from queries of the data sources? 

Answer #24 FDLE is not familiar with the phrase “intelligence based responses,” but as with 
Answer #23, no response time or other requirements have been defined. 

Question #25 
How many concurrent users does FDLE anticipate for this system? What would be the approximate 
total number of users? How would these be broken down by operational field users vs data mining 
(investigators)? 

Answer #25 
FDLE does not have estimates of this information. Breakdown of user types will vary 
by Region.  Information about current systems is contained in the tables on pages 
16-20, and may be used by vendors for the purposes of this RFI response. 

Question #26 What are the authentication requirements for users? 

Answer #26 Detailed requirements have not been defined, but FDLE will require that this system 
meets CJIS Security Policy.  See Answer #11. 

Question #27 Will the consolidated system handle users and account management? 

Answer #27 
FDLE desires a system capable of user administration.  Please include a response to 
the following bullet from page 10 of the RFI, “Describe the user account 
management, audit, and reporting capabilities available to administrative users,” in 
the RFI response. 

Question #28 With regards to training would it be the vendor’s responsibility to train all of the 55,000 users or 
would a train the trainer approach be acceptable? 

Answer #28 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your company provides different 
types of training, feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #29 Would FDLE require an online training module? Please describe. 

Answer #29 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #30 Will two-factor authentication be required? 

Answer #30 
No requirements have been defined, but authentication must comply with FBI CJIS 
Security Policy (see Answer #11).  The current regional systems do not require two-
factor authentication since both the user and the system(s) are both contained in 
secure facilities.   

Question #31 Understanding the data sharing system is not considered mission critical, what is FDLE’s desired 
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level of system uptime? 

Answer #31 
Detailed requirements have not been defined.  Please include a response to the 
following bullet from page 8 of the RFI, “Vendor should provide the uptime (e.g. 
99.9%) that this solution would be able to meet,” in the RFI response. 

Question #32 What type of alerts or monitoring would FDLE expect to see implemented in the new solution (i.e. 
notification to an investigator about a recent arrest of a person of interest)? 

Answer #32 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #33 Please describe the preferred analytic capabilities of the new solution. 

Answer #33 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #34 Is it intended that the system will be used for geo mapping for profiling data and locations? 

Answer #34 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #35 With regards to expunged data; is it expected that the proposed system will maintain 
expungements, or will it be the responsibility of the sending systems? 

Answer #35 
Detailed requirements have not been defined. If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response, but please note that some 
mechanism to maintain synchronization of expunged data will be required to comply 
with Florida statutes 

Question #36 
FDLE is looking to build, own, and maintain its own unified database (with data from RMS, JMS, 
CAD, and other pawn vendors). Does FDLE also want to enable its officers in the field to update 
that data or is it only a repository for search?  

Answer #36 
FDLE is not looking to replace any local or state records system (RMS, JMS, CAD, 
etc.) with this system.  The statewide system will import and store copies of these 
records, or provide read-only access to these records. 

Question #37 

I received your Data Sharing Exchange RFI through a Partner in the Business Intelligence software 
field. 
My intent is to have them collaborate with Northrop Grumman as a sub.   
Would you be able to send over the contact information for the NGC Project Manager, already 
involved with the Florida Regional Data Sharing system? 
If that person is not involved with the RFI, please forward the contact info for that person if you will. 

Answer #37 
As RFI 1523 is just a request for information, there will be no sub-contractors or 
partners.  If and when this project becomes a procurement, companies could 
partner or sub-contract with other vendors.  Once the procurement has been 
requested, it will be posted out on the Vendor Bid System (VBS). 

Question #38 

Section VIII. of the RFI (Response Instructions and Format) asks us to “submit one electronic copy 
to the Procurement Officer …” and requires the submittal to be organized into 4 tabbed 
sections.  A) In what file format do they want our electronic submission?  B) Is a hard copy to be 
submitted also? 

Answer #38 The electronic submission should be formatted in MS Word.  A hard copy is not 
necessary. 

Question #39 Is it possible to obtain the list of RMS (and JMS, CAD, pawn, etc) software programs used by each 
agency in their respective regions? 

Answer #39 A complete list is not available, and for the purposes of the RFI, FDLE is not looking 
for responses at that level of detail. 

Question #40 Section IV, page 10, Item 2- Background. Can you give us a more detailed explanation of what type 
of information you are looking for in the Background section? How does it differ from Section 1? 

Answer #40 
In Section 1, FDLE is looking for a brief description of the corporate capabilities, 
including the answers to a, b, and c.  For the Background section, FDLE is looking 
for relevant information about the history of the organization and how it is positioned 
to respond to this RFI. 

Question #41 How many data sources are currently connected? 
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Answer #41 The most current information available is included on page 16 of the RFI in the 
Regional System Participation table, in the “Participating Agencies” row. 

Question #42 How many additional data sources do you expect to connect over the next 5 years?  

Answer #42 

FDLE does not have projections of this information, but there are a number of data 
sources in Florida that are not connected to the existing data sharing systems for a 
variety of reasons (see page 16 of the RFI in the Regional System Participation table, 
in the “Agencies able to Participate” row).  FDLE would like to connect and 
maintain/sustain as many of these as is practical should it move forward with a 
procurement. 

Question #43 Do you envision connecting non law enforcement agencies such as courts as well? If so, how many 
additional data sources do you estimate that would include? 

Answer #43 No, this is specifically for the connection and sharing of law enforcement data to be 
accessed by law enforcement (only) users. 

Question #44 What is the total daily capacity of data that can be moved over the Criminal Justice Network 
(CJNET) as it relates to this project? 

Answer #44 
For the purposes of the RFI, FDLE is not looking for responses at that level of detail.  
The CJNet capacities will be provided should FDLE move forward with a 
procurement. 

Question #45 If needed, can additional bandwidth be obtained for this project? 

Answer #45 The CJNet is scalable, but as with Answer #44, FDLE is not looking for responses at 
that level of detail. 

Question #46 
You state that the new system must support all current capabilities. Can you give a more detailed 
explanation of the current capabilities? 

Answer #46 

Information about current capabilities can be found on pages 16 (bullets at the 
beginning) and on page 19 & 20 (Advanced System Features that are “Yes” across 
all systems).  For the purposes of the RFI, information about the support of these 
items is all that is required. 

Question #47 What are some of the additional capabilities you’d like to see in this solution? 

Answer #47 
FDLE is looking for information on additional capabilities that are available in the 
marketplace, so vendors are encouraged to describe additional capabilities that they 
are able to offer. 

Question #48 Page 6, pp2. You state that the ‘use of a challenging technical standard’ is one of the reasons that 
the interconnection between the disparate systems has proven difficult. What is that standard? 

Answer #48 

The Logical Entity eXchange Specification (LEXS), because the specification 
included a number of options regarding many of the data elements.  If/when LEXS 
(or a similarly ambiguous specification) is used in the future; FDLE will require all 
project participants to agree on a single interpretation of the specification for each 
data element. 

Question #49 What specific data exchange standard(s) must the replacement system support? 

Answer #49 
Requirements have not been defined, but the FBI requires the use of the LEXS-SR 
and LEXS-PD standards to be used for data upload and query or N-DEx, respectively.  
Vendors are encouraged to provide information on data exchange standards that 
can be used for the system. 

Question #50 What data exchanges must be defined by a standards process in order to implement this project? 

Answer #50 As described in Answer #49, the only data exchange that uses required standards is 
the FBI’s N-DEx system. 

Question #51 

Can you list the data elements that are required for the following data sources:? (Or at a minimum 
the number of data elements for each source) 

-Arrest 
- Booking 
- Case Report 
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- Citation 
- Incident Report 
- CAD/Dispatch 
- Field Interview 
- Master Record 
- Miscellaneous Incident 
- Occurrence 
- Pawn Ticket 
- Permit 
- Supervision/Registry/Watch List 
- Supplemental Report 
- Traffic Collision 
- Visitation 
- Warrant 
- RMS 
- Second Hand 
- Metal Recycling 
- Narratives 

Answer #51 Specific data element requirements have not been defined and that level of detail is 
not required for the purposes of the RFI. 

Question #52 

Are there any additional data elements that are currently not supported that FDLE would like to 
have incorporated in the new solution for the following data sources: 

- Arrest 
- Booking 
- Case Report 
- Citation 
- Incident Report 
- CAD/Dispatch 
- Field Interview 
- Master Record 
- Miscellaneous Incident 
- Occurrence 
- Pawn Ticket 
- Permit 
- Supervision/Registry/Watch List 
- Supplemental Report 
- Traffic Collision 
- Visitation 
- Warrant 
- RMS 
- Second Hand 
- Metal Recycling 
- Narratives 

Answer #52 That information is not available, but it is possible that there are additional data 
elements that are not currently supported.   

Question #53 Can you define the search parameters that are required for real time queries from the field? 

Answer #53 Specific requirements have not been defined, but queries similar to those run in 
other systems during a traffic stop can be used for the purposes of the RFI.  

Question #54 What sort of wildcarding and/or "sounds like" are required/ desired? 

Answer #54 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #55 Are there any specification for return and display of officer safety information? 

Answer #55 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #56 Are there any standard(s) that the real time queries must meet? 
Answer #56 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  Please include a response to the 

Page 6 of 13 
 



   
   

second bullet and associated sub-bullets at the top of page 9 of the RFI in your 
response. 

Question #57 Where do you expect the budget for this project to come from? 

Answer #57 FDLE intends to use Federal grants, if available, and to add this to the agency’s 
Legislative Budget Request (LBR). 

Question #58 When do you anticipate releasing a RFP or ITN? 

Answer #58 

At this time, the Statewide Data Sharing Committee has only been tasked to assess 
Florida’s law enforcement data sharing needs.  This RFI is being used as part of the 
effort to gather this information.  A possible procurement would require approval 
from the Domestic Security Oversight Council (DSOC) and the timeline would be 
determined at that time. 

Question #59 Can you tell us approximately how much was spent on the original 7 regional systems and the state 
system? 

Answer #59 
Funding for the existing systems was shared and came from a number of sources so 
there is no simple way to add up how much has been spent in total.  Funding 
sources have included municipal and county governments, the State of Florida, the 
Department of Defense (DoD), and Department of Homeland Security (DHS) Grants. 

Question #60 Is FDLE expecting to provide the analytics solution to the local agencies, or is the expected use 
case primarily a state function?  

Answer #60 Detailed requirements and use cases have not been defined.  If your system includes 
this feature, feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #61 Are there any use cases that can be provided for the analytics for example purposes?  
Answer #61 Detailed requirements and use cases have not been defined. 

Question #62 
In envisioning a cost for the projected system bid, does this include the cost of integrating the local 
systems (i.e. writing an adapter to each of the vendor’s backend system) or does this include only 
the cost to provide an IEPD (Information Exchange Package Documentation) for a given system? 

Answer #62 For the purposes of the RFI sample pricing, please assume that this includes the 
cost of integrating and maintaining/sustaining connectivity to all data sources. 

Question #63 Is FDLE mandating the vendor support the LEXS-SR format specification or is an analogous 
solution already developed in a state-wide network acceptable? 

Answer #63 
Per Answer #49, LEXS-PD and LEXS-SR are required to connect to N-DEx, but the 
standards/requirements for sharing data within Florida have not been defined.  
Information about other standards (including proprietary standards) that could be 
used should be included in the RFI response. 

Question #64 
In envisioning the geo-coding solution, does FDLE have a state-wide geo-coded address map as 
part of an existing project that be used? Is a google or yahoo provided service an option?  

Answer #64 
Shapefile data provided by the Florida Department of Transportation is available to 
FDLE at no cost.  This and other options can be used and vendors should provide 
their recommended solutions. 

Question #65 

RFI, Section IV - Is it the Department's preference or intention to only consider a single application 
that meets all the implied requirements? To what extent would the Department be open to a best-
of-breed (single vendor) multi-application solution to meet the requirements? Or a single 
platformed, multi-application solution (single vendor) to meet the requirements? Please provide 
insights to each of these scenarios. 

Answer #65 
FDLE is open to all solutions for data sharing and the goal of this RFI is to determine 
what solutions are available in the marketplace.  Vendors are encouraged to provide 
information about a solution that they feel would best meet Florida law 
enforcement’s data sharing needs. 

Question #66 

RFI, Section General - What is the "external data stakeholder" (external to the Department) de 
facto relationship for each of the listed "interfaces"? Are these "push" (from each data stakeholder 
to the Department)? "Pull" (Department "gets" what it needs from each data stakeholder)? "Bi 
directional" (the Department and each data stakeholder literally exchange data, via an iterative data 
enrichment process)? Please elaborate and/or categorize for each external data stakeholder. 

Answer #66 Data sources for existing regional data sharing systems make their data available via 
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a number of approaches determined by the technologies, policies, and requirements 
of the agency’s system and the regional system.  Some data sources have a direct 
feed (push or query interface) to the regional data sharing system.  Others export 
their data to an intermediary server or have interfaces that pull data from their 
system.  None of the interfaces are bi-directional as all access is read-only and the 
regional systems do not update the source system.  For the purposes of the RFI, 
vendors are encouraged to provide information about their solutions to connect to 
data sources with read-only interfaces (push, pull, or other). 

Question #67 

RFI, Section IV - What is the Department's tolerance level for introducing new techniques and 
technologies as long as it "supports the existing capabilities and capacity provided in the current 
data sharing systems"? Some of the existing techniques and corresponding technologies are 
outdated (and expensive) and we want to understand to what extent this initiative is a "rip and 
replace" or a new way of thinking. Example: using data virtualization concepts versus solely relying 
on replicated and ETL'd physical data storage and movement. Please elaborate. 

Answer #67 

FDLE is open to all solutions for data sharing and the goal of this RFI is to determine 
what solutions are available in the marketplace.  The second bullet under Section IV, 
General Description, “Specific architectural and technological improvements now 
available for data sharing,” states FDLE’s desire to learn about new technologies.  In 
terms of a “rip and replace,” FDLE is looking for a statewide data sharing solution 
and no requirements or direction have been defined, so the Department is open to all 
options. 

Question #68 
On page 7, FDLE lists a Florida Law Enforcement eXchange (FLEX) that seems to be a query hub 
between all the regional systems.  The RFI talks about data sharing between regional systems that 
seems to be addressed by FLEX.  What capabilities beyond FLEX is the State looking for in a 
system? 

Answer #68 FDLE is looking for a single statewide system to maximize cost efficiencies and 
provide a single, consistent data sharing solution across the entire state. 

Question #69 What is the State’s preferred deployment mechanism? 
Answer #69 FDLE is looking to vendors to provide their recommendation for deployment. 

Question #70 

In the RFI document, it states vendors should submit one electronic copy. Can the FDLE please 
confirm that responses are to be emailed to the Procurement Officer as an attachment by the 
submission deadline? Also, in the case where a vendor has a redacted version of the response to 
submit, can this also be sent in an email, under separate cover, or should it be placed on CD and 
mailed? 

Answer #70 The redacted copies may be sent via email. 

Question #71 Is there a requirement for the data feed from underlying data sources to the central data repository 
to be in a specific data format (e,g, LEXS, NIEM)? 

Answer #71 Detailed requirements have not been defined.  If your system includes this feature, 
feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #72 Would FDLE be interested in acquiring a toolset to perform their own data integration (ETL) 
process with minimal assistance from the vendor? 

Answer #72 

Not for the project implementation as FDLE does not have the resources to perform 
the data integration work.  If the vendor has a toolset that could be used by FDLE to 
maintain or add interfaces to data sources with minimal assistance from the vendor 
after the project is complete, please include details of this toolset in the RFI 
response. 

Question #73 
Would FDLE consider a cloud solution for the statewide system if it were housed in a facility 
managed by a nationally-recognized law enforcement telecommunications system with impeccable 
security credentials? 

Answer #73 
Any solution other than a system housed within the FDLE Datacenter would require 
further evaluation from FDLE, but for the purposes of the RFI, FDLE is open to all 
options, if the vendor believes they will comply with CJIS Security Policy 
(http://www.fbi.gov/about-us/cjis/cjis-security-policy-resource-center). 

Question #74 Is it the intent of FLDE to replace the current Regional Systems ( R-LEX, Finder etc) with a single 
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system ? Or is the desire to connect to those existing Regional Systems and to create a single data 
warehouse from those Regional Systems ? 

Answer #74 See Answers #2 and #6.   
Question #75 What Analytical tools if any that are currently being used now by FDLE and/or the local Agencies? 

Answer #75 uReveal  and IBM i2 Analyst’s Notebook are two examples of tools being used, but a 
full list is not available. 

Question #76 Is it the desire of FDLE to have a single, uniform and consistent front-end interface for all the 
Officers on the street throughout the state ? 

Answer #76 For the purposes of the statewide data sharing system described by this RFI, yes. 
Question #77 Is it the desire of FDLE to have a single, uniform and consistent Analytical Tool for all the 

Investigators to utilize throughout the state ? 
Answer #77 For the purposes of the statewide data sharing system described by this RFI, yes. 

Question #78 
Please refer to Section VI , Tab 2, items 3, 4 and 5. Will FDLE please clarify the 
distinctions between Implementation Goals, Implementation Objectives and 
Deliverables? 

Answer #78 

Implementation Goals should describe the overall purpose of the data sharing 
implementation (what the data sharing system will look like when complete).  
Implementation Objectives should describe the specific efforts or actions that will 
attain the Implementation Goals.  Deliverables are the individual items produced 
during the project that will lead to the completion of the implementation (project). 

Question #79 Please refer to Section VI , Tab 4. Will FDLE please elaborate on the intent of this tab 
and what is meant by the phrase exceptional service provider? 

Answer #79 ***FDLE CONTRACTS TO PROVIDE RESPONSE*** 

Question #80 Will FDLE please provide an estimate of how many users will have access to the 
system? 

Answer #80 The information about current systems is provided in the “System Usage” table on 
page 18 of the RFI and that information should be used for the purposes of the RFI. 

Question #81 
Is FDLE seeking a solution which will interface directly with individual data sources, and effectively 
replace the regional data sharing systems?  Or, does FDLE prefer to keep the regional systems for 
data extraction into a new data exchange platform? 

Answer #81 See Answers #2, #6, and #74. 

Question #82 In the case that the FDLE prefers to keep the regional systems in place, is there a process for 
addressing business continuity if a regional data hub or the individual feeds malfunction? 

Answer #82 See Answers #2, #6, and #74. 

Question #83 Will the new data sharing system ultimately house and provide searching and reporting capabilities 
on all of the data types shown in Appendix A of the RFI? 

Answer #83 
Detailed requirements have not been defined, but FDLE would desire as many of the 
existing data types as possible within the system.  If your system includes these 
features, feel free to include this information in your response. 

Question #84 Please define the number of CONCURRENT users (online simultaneously) anticipated in the 
planned system, per RDSTF region and statewide. 

Answer #84 See Answer #80; concurrent usage information is not available and requirements 
have not been defined. 

Question #85 
Does the FDLE envision the project to be fully funded by the State as a single program, or will the 
statewide core system be funded and each participating agency be left to “opt in” and pay for their 
portion through separate procurements? 

Answer #85 At this time, FDLE plans to request full funding for the system from the State 
Legislature. 

Question #86 What is the approved (or envisioned) budget in the State for this project? 

Answer #86 
FDLE does not have any approved budget for this project, and one purpose of the 
RFI is to obtain sample pricing information that could be used to determine a cost 
estimate.   

Question #87 What are some examples of the envisioned use cases for mobile / handheld users in the system? 
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Answer #87 
Specific use cases have not been defined, but example uses may include traffic 
stops and investigative queries by investigators at crime scenes and other areas in 
the field. 

Question #88 Will mobile / handheld users be operating on agency issued and secured mobile devices, or will the 
envisioned program procure, secure and field these devices? 

Answer #88 
Mobile device policies and procedures have not been defined, but will require CJIS 
Security compliance (http://www.fbi.gov/about-us/cjis/cjis-security-policy-resource-
center). 

Question #89 What network connectivity will be used to connect the field / mobile users of the envisioned 
program, and are these costs part of the envisioned program? 

Answer #89 
Network connectivity would be defined by the local, state, tribal, and federal 
agencies using the system and all connectivity costs would be borne by the 
participating agencies. 

Question #90 How long of a duration does the FDLE envision that data will/should be retained in the envisioned 
system to be queried by Users? 

Answer #90 
That requirement has not been defined, but most systems of this type store the data 
indefinitely, unless deletion or expungement is required by statute, or storage costs 
become prohibitive. 

Question #91 In Appendix A, under “System Usage”, please define a “query” as it pertains to each existing 
system.  Is a query a user-issued request, or inclusive of system automated update queries? 

Answer #91 Please read the asterisk underneath the table.  FDLE has not been able to determine 
how these queries have been calculated by the vendors of the systems. 

Question #92 

Appendix A provides a listing of regional records and systems that are interfacing to existing 
RDSTF regional systems.  Recognizing that all data fields in these legacy systems would/should be 
shared statewide, does the FDLE have a defined common data schema for the records that will be 
shared statewide? 

Answer #92 FDLE has not defined a common data schema, but per Answer #48, FDLE will require 
all project participants agree on a common standard. 

Question #93 Please further clarify background check clearance requirements under section V.  Are you seeking 
fingerprint based background clearance or FBI security clearance? 

Answer #93 

For the purposes of the RFI, FDLE is looking for vendors who maintain qualified staff 
who have cleared and maintain active clearances with similar organizations.  Should 
FDLE move forward with a procurement, all vendor personnel involved in the project 
will be required to successfully complete a FDLE background investigation which 
includes name, fingerprint, credit, drug screening, and other checks. 

Question #94 Is the intent for data to be maintained in the seven regional systems as well as at the state level? 
Answer #94 See Answers #2, #6, and #74. 
Question #95 Is one state level data warehouse desired for the housing of all data?  

Answer #95 
FDLE has not specified whether a data warehouse is required, but all law 
enforcement data within the state needs to be accessible to all statewide users.  
Vendors are encouraged to provide details on their solution for a statewide system. 

Question #96 
There is reference in section seven to updating data on a regular basis to keep records current, is it 
the intent of Florida to duplicate and store the same data that is currently stored at each of the 
seven regionals? 

Answer #96 
The reference in this section is to having a mechanism to synchronize the data 
stored or accessed in the statewide system with the source (adds, updates, and 
completes) system.  This is required when the statewide system is not connected 
directly to the data source, which is not practical for many of the data sources. 

Question #97 Does Florida currently have a statewide search engine in place? 

Answer #97 
If by search engine, you mean the capability to run queries of Florida’s law 
enforcement data, then FLEX, when completed, will allow searches across the five 
current regional data sharing systems.  At present, FINDER is the only system 
whose users are able to access data across all systems. 
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Question #98 
The RFI mentions that Florida has not been successful in data sharing efforts in the past, have 
there been previous vendor contracts with the goal of statewide data sharing as a deliverable? If so, 
who were the participating vendors? 

Answer #98 The RFI did not mention unsuccessful data sharing efforts. 

Question #99 
Are there data sources such other than local data that Florida would like to make available via a 
sophisticated search engine?  For example, state level sources such as sex offender records, 
corrections data, etc. 

Answer #99 
Yes, all statewide law enforcement data would be in scope for this system including 
FDLE’s Sex Offender, Career Offender, and Missing Persons registries and other 
systems that may or may not be available in current data sharing systems. 

Question #100 What systems other than NDex does FDLE desire to share and query data with? 

Answer #100 
N-DEx is the only system that FDLE has defined as being in scope for the system, 
but FDLE desires to have the capability to share and query data from other systems 
using a flexible, standards-based interface (such as the one for N-DEx). 

Question #101 Are there estimates of the number of anticipated daily queries? 

Answer #101 The information about current systems is provided in the “System Usage” table on 
page 18 of the RFI and that information should be used for the purposes of the RFI. 

Question #102 How many users are anticipated in total? 

Answer #102 The information about current systems is provided in the “System Usage” table on 
page 18 of the RFI and that information should be used for the purposes of the RFI. 

Question #103 Will photos/mugshots be shared? 
Answer #103 See Answer #13 

Question #104 Who was responsible for FLEX?  Was there a vendor contract in place for implementation?  If so, 
who was the vendor? 

Answer #104 
FDLE was responsible for FLEX and the project was completed using staff 
augmentation.  The regional system vendors (CTS America, IBM, LETTR, and 
Northrop Grumman) were contracted to build interfaces from their systems to the 
FLEX Hub. 

Question #105 The RFI mentions that R-LEX and SmartShare will complete interfaces to for FLEX in early 2015, is 
it the intention to continue to maintain FLEX for a period of time? 

Answer #105 Yes, FLEX will be maintained until a replacement for the regional systems can be 
implemented. 

Question #106 
In addition to state level data sharing, is the capability for searching and retrieving results from N-
Dex a requirement?  Is so, is it acceptable to integrate this searching as part of the statewide 
search engine with N-Dex being noted as the data source on returned results? 

Answer #106 

Yes, FDLE will require search and retrieval (query access) to N-DEx, and this may be 
integrated into the search engine (as defined in Answer #97).  Records retrieved 
through N-DEx contain information about the agency and contact information of 
every record and this information would need to be displayed.  Further information 
about the N-DEx Incident/Arrest Information Exchange Package Documentation 
(IEPD) can be found at this location: 
https://it.ojp.gov/default.aspx?page=1017&standard=520  

Question #107 What is the number of individual Florida law enforcement agencies? 

Answer #107 

See Answer #41, and there approximately 413 law enforcement agencies in Florida 
(67 Sheriff’s Offices, approximately 313 Police Departments, 20 University Police 
Departments, and 13 distinct statewide law enforcement agencies).  Please note that 
this information is subject to change based on the needs of the state and local 
governments. 

Question #108 Will federal agencies located in Florida access this system? 
Answer #108 Yes 
Question #109 Is it anticipated that law enforcement agencies (non-federal) outside the state of Florida would be 

granted system access? 
Answer #109 No, they will access Florida data via N-DEx, though exceptions may be made in 
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specific circumstances. 
Question #110 Does Florida Fish and Wildlife maintain their own system, or do they participate in the State Node? 

Answer #110 The Florida Fish and Wildlife Commission (FWC) maintains their own records 
systems and there is an interface from those data sources to the State Node. 

Question #111 
Should the three statewide registries – Florida Career Offender Application for Statewide Tracking, 
Missing Endangered Persons Information Clearinghouse, and Florida Sexual Offenders and 
Predators be a data source through this new system? 

Answer #111 These systems are currently in the State Node and would continue to be in scope for 
the statewide system. 

Question #112 Are crime mapping features desired at the state level? 
Answer #112 Yes, if they are provided, they should cover the entire state of Florida. 
Question #113 Is Compstat / Graphing desired? 

Answer #113 
Any features that would assist investigators in lead generation would be helpful, and 
vendors are encouraged to provide detail on what types of advanced features they 
are able to offer. 

Question #114 Will corrections data be shared in the new system? 

Answer #114 
Yes, a subset of the Florida Department of Corrections (DOC) data would be in scope 
for the statewide system.  The specific data would need to be determined by DOC 
and FDLE. 

Question #115 What kind of auditing will the system require? 

Answer #115 
Detailed requirements have not been defined, but auditing will need to comply with 
the FBI’s CJIS Security Policy (http://www.fbi.gov/about-us/cjis/cjis-security-policy-
resource-center) at minimum. 

Question #116 What are the expected system performance requirements? 

Answer #116 
The tables on pages 16-20 of the RFI contain information about current system 
performance.  Requirements for the statewide system have not been defined, so 
vendors are asked to provide an estimate of the performance they expect to provide. 

Question #117 Does any of the data that will be shared on the system require encryption? 

Answer #117 
Detailed requirements have not been defined, but encryption will need to comply 
with the FBI’s CJIS Security Policy (http://www.fbi.gov/about-us/cjis/cjis-security-
policy-resource-center). 

Question #118 Are there any specific hardware constraints that the prospective vendor needs to be aware of – or 
will FDLE utilize hardware recommended by the vendor? 

Answer #118 There are no constraints or requirements that have been defined; vendor should 
provide recommendations in their response. 

Question #119 Are there any specific software constraints that the prospective vendor needs to be aware of? 

Answer #119 There are no constraints or requirements that have been defined; vendor should 
provide recommendations in their response. 

Question #120 Are there any business requirement constraints other than those    discussed that the vendor needs 
to be aware of? 

Answer #120 No.  The business requirements in the RFI are all that have been defined thus far. 
Question #121 What is the magnitude of data cleansing and normalization expected? 

Answer #121 

High.  While some source systems have front-end validation, most systems are free 
text or provide limited dropdowns and radio buttons.  Data quality is also affected by 
the less-than-ideal circumstances under which most reports are written by officers.  
Additionally, there are roughly 40-50 vendors that provide systems to law 
enforcement in Florida and even within these systems, not all agencies use the 
systems the same way, so extensive cleansing and normalization should be factored 
into the RFI response.   

Question #122 
Please further describe what is expected with entity resolution?  Is it expected that the system will 
identify similar groupings of individuals, etc. and forward to an assigned administrator for 
confirmation? 
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Answer #122 

Given the high volume of records, FDLE’s preference would be to have automated 
entity resolution (perhaps with % match or score), but semi-automated approaches 
and other technologies would be welcomed.  Please provide detail about options or 
solutions that can be provided for this function. 

Question #123 Does FDLE have a set of published rules for entity resolution? 

Answer #123 No.  The entity resolution contained in some of the current regional data sharing 
systems is proprietary and was not developed by FDLE. 

Question #124 Please provide examples of restricted data that FDLE would expect to be filtered? 

Answer #124 

Agencies are encouraged to share as much data as possible, as most do, but some 
agencies may have specific requirements to filter data such as: active investigations, 
high profile crimes, cases from certain investigative groups, confidential informant 
information, or any other records the source agency elects to restrict. 

Question #125 How does the LEXS  standard factor into this effort?  Will this standard need to be used for this 
project effort? 

Answer #125 See Answer #49.   
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